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D. The BBK Respondents 

66. The BBK Respondents have imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the 

United States after importation mobile devices such as OnePlus 8 Pro. (hereinafter the “BBK 

Accused Device”).  

67. The BBK Accused Devices that infringe the Asserted Patents have been imported, 

sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after importation in violation of, inter 

alia, Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i). The specific instances of importation of infringing products set 

forth below are illustrative and non-exhaustive examples of the unlawful importation of 

infringing products.  

68. Exhibit 42 is a receipt dated September 3, 2021 reflecting the sale of a OnePlus 8 

Pro that was purchased from Amazon.com in the United States and delivered to an address in  

the United States. As shown below, the product is labeled “ASSEMBLED IN CHINA”.  
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E. The HMD Respondents 

69. The HMD Respondents have imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within 

the United States after importation smartphones such as Nokia 9 PureView, (hereinafter the 

“HMD Accused Device”).  

70. The HMD Accused Device that infringes the Asserted Patents have been 

imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after importation in violation 

of, inter alia, Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i). The specific instances of importation of infringing 

products set forth below are illustrative and non-exhaustive examples of the unlawful 

importation of infringing products. 

71. Exhibit 44 is a receipt dated September 5, 2021 reflecting the sale of a Nokia 9 

PureView that was purchased from Cell2Get.com in the United States and delivered to an 

address in the United States. As shown below, the box is labeled “MADE IN CHINA”.  

 



 

 24 
 

F. Sonim 

72. Sonim has imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States 

after importation mobile devices such as XP8, (hereinafter the “Sonim Accused Device”).  

73. The Sonim Accused Device that infringe the Asserted Patents has been imported, 

sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after importation in violation of, inter 

alia, Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i). The specific instances of importation of infringing products set 

forth below are illustrative and non-exhaustive examples of the unlawful importation of 

infringing products.  

74. Exhibit 45 is a receipt dated September 3, 2021 reflecting the sale of Sonim XP8 

that was purchased from Amazon.com in the United States and delivered to an address in the 

United States. As shown below, the box is labeled “MADE IN CIHNA”.   

 
 

VI. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS COMMITTED BY THE 
RESPONDENTS 

A. The Lenovo Respondents 

1. Direct Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the Lenovo 
Respondents 

96. The Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. Lenovo directly 
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infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Lenovo 

Accused Mobile Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 9, Lenovo’s Moto E5 

Play device satisfies all limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. As 

shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 9, Lenovo’s Moto E5 Play device and its 

components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. On information and belief, Lenovo imports into the United States, sell for importation, 

and/or sell after importation the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices.  

97. The Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. Lenovo 

directly infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, 

importing, selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the 

Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 10, the Moto 

E5 Play device satisfies all limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 10, the Moto E5 Play device and its 

components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. On information and belief, Lenovo imports into the United States, sell for importation, 

and/or sell after importation the Lenovo Accused Devices.  

98. The Lenovo Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. Lenovo directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Lenovo 

Accused Mobile Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 11, the Moto E5 Play 
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device satisfies all limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. 

As shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 11, the Moto E5 Play device and its components 

thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. 

On information and belief, Lenovo imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or 

sell after importation the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices.  

99. The Lenovo Chromebook S3304 device directly infringes, literally and/or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2-4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. Lenovo directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Lenovo 

Chromebook S330 device. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 12, the Lenovo 

Chromebook S330 device satisfies all limitations of at least claims 1, 2-4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 

Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 12, the Lenovo Chromebook S330 device 

and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 2-4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 

Patent. On information and belief, Lenovo imports into the United States, sell for importation, 

and/or sell after importation the Lenovo Chromebook S330 device. 

2. Indirect Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the Lenovo 
Respondents 

100. Lenovo has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). Lenovo has knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the Lenovo Accused Mobile 

Devices’ infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. Lenovo’s knowledge of the ‘554 

 
4 BNR has provided a claim chart for the Chromebook S330 device compared to the ‘862 

Patent only without prejudice to assert additional Asserted Patents against this device during the 
Investigation.  
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Patent, while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Lenovo 

Accused Mobile Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers 

in an infringing manner constitutes induced infringement. When Lenovo’s customers use the 

Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of 

claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. By providing the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices 

to customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being 

on notice of the ‘554 Patent, Lenovo specifically intends for Lenovo’s customers to infringe the 

‘554 Patent.  

101. Lenovo contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. Lenovo has had knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. When Lenovo’s customers use the Lenovo 

Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘554 Patent. The 

Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘554 Patent and have no 

substantial non-infringing uses. Lenovo’s receipt of the December 1, 2017 notice letter, and its 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Lenovo Accused Mobile 

Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘554 

Patent, including the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices that are known by Lenovo to be specially 

made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-

infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

102. Lenovo has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Lenovo has knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the Lenovo Accused 

Mobile Devices’ infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. Lenovo’s knowledge of 
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the ‘889 Patent, while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the 

Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their 

customers in an infringing manner constitutes induced infringement. When Lenovo’s customers 

used the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least 

each of claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. By providing the Lenovo Accused 

Mobile Devices to customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an infringing 

manner while being on notice of the ‘889 Patent, Lenovo specifically intends for Lenovo’s 

customers to infringe the ‘889 Patent.  

103. Lenovo contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the 

‘889 Patent. Lenovo has had knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the Lenovo Accused Mobile 

Devices’ infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. When Lenovo’s customers use 

the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘889 

Patent. The Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘889 Patent 

and have no substantial non-infringing uses. Lenovo’s receipt of the notice letter, and its 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Lenovo Accused Mobile 

Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘889 

Patent, including the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices that are known by Lenovo to be specially 

made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-

infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

104. Lenovo has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Lenovo has knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the Lenovo Accused 

Mobile Devices’ infringement thereof since at least January 15, 2019. Lenovo’s knowledge of 
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the ‘629 Patent, while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the 

Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their 

customers in an infringing manner constitutes induced infringement. When Lenovo’s customers 

use the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least 

each of claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. By providing the Lenovo 

Accused Mobile Devices to customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an 

infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘629 Patent, Lenovo specifically intends for 

Lenovo’s customers to infringe the ‘629 Patent.  

105. Lenovo contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of 

the ‘629 Patent. Lenovo has had knowledge of U.S. Patent No. 7,990,842 (from which the ‘629 

Patent reissued) since December 1, 2017, and the ‘629 Patent and the Lenovo Accused Mobile 

Devices’ infringement thereof since at least August 13, 2021. When Lenovo’s customers use the 

Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘629 Patent. 

The Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘629 Patent and have 

no substantial non-infringing uses. Lenovo’s receipt of the notice letters, and its continuing to 

sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices that 

embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘629 Patent, including 

the Lenovo Accused Mobile Devices that are known by Lenovo to be specially made or adapted 

for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, 

constitutes contributory infringement.  

106. Lenovo has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). Lenovo has knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the Chromebook S330 devices’ 
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infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. Lenovo’s knowledge of the ‘862 Patent, 

while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Chromebook S330 

devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing 

manner constitutes induced infringement. When Lenovo’s customers use the Lenovo 

Chromebook S330 devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least claims 1, 2- 4, 

and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. By providing the Chromebook S330 devices to customers, together 

with instructions on how to use them in infringing manners while being on notice of the ‘862 

Patent, Lenovo specifically intends for Lenovo’s customers to infringe the ‘862 Patent.  

107. Lenovo contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 

Patent. Lenovo has had knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the Lenovo Chromebook S330 

devices’ infringement thereof since at least January 15, 2019. When Lenovo’s customers use the 

Lenovo Chromebook S330 devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘862 

Patent. The Lenovo Chromebook S330 devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘862 Patent 

and has no substantial non-infringing uses. Lenovo’s receipt of the January 15, 2019 notice 

letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Lenovo 

Chromebook S330 devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed 

invention of the ‘862 Patent, including the Lenovo Chromebook S330 devices that are known by 

Lenovo to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple 

articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

B. The TCL Respondents 

1. Direct Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the TCL 
Respondents 

108. The TCL Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. TCL directly infringes these 
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claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the TCL Accused Mobile 

Devices. As shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 14, the TCL 10 Pro and its components 

thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. On 

information and belief, TCL imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after 

importation the TCL Accused Mobile Devices.  

109. The TCL Accused Mobile Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. TCL directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the TCL Accused 

Mobile Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 15, the TCL 10 Pro satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. As shown in the claim 

chart attached at Exhibit 15, the TCL 10 Pro and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of 

at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. On information and belief, TCL 

imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices.  

110. The TCL Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. TCL directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the TCL Accused 

Mobile Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 16, the TCL 10 Pro device 

satisfies all limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. As 

shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 16, the TCL 10 Pro device and its components 
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thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. 

On information and belief, TCL imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell 

after importation the TCL Accused Mobile Devices.  

111. The TCL 10 Pro device directly infringes, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12  of the ‘862 Patent. TCL directly infringes these 

claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the TCL 10 Pro device. As 

shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 17, the TCL 10 Pro device satisfies all limitations of 

at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 17, the TCL 10 Pro device and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least 

claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. On information and belief, TCL imports into the 

United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the TCL 10 Pro device.  

112. The TCL 55” Class 6-Series television directly infringes, literally and/or under the 

doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-9, 11, 13-14, 19, 20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. TCL 

directly infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, 

importing, selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the 55” 

Class 6-Series television. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 18, the 55” Class 6-

Series television satisfies all limitations of at least claims 1, 8-9, 11, 13-14, 19, 20, and 27 of the 

‘629 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at Exhibit 18, the TCL 55” Class 6-Series 

television and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 8-9, 11, 13-14, 

19, 20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. On information and belief, TCL imports into the United States, 

sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the TCL 55” Class 6-Series television. 
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2. Indirect Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the TCL 
Respondents 

113. TCL has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). TCL has knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the TCL Accused Mobile Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. TCL’s knowledge of the ‘554 Patent, 

while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the TCL Accused 

Mobile Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an 

infringing manner constitutes induced infringement. When TCL’s customers use the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 

1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. By providing the TCL Accused Mobile Devices to 

customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on 

notice of the ‘554 Patent, TCL specifically intends for TCL’s customers to infringe the ‘554 

Patent.  

114. TCL contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. TCL has had knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the TCL Accused Mobile Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. When TCL’s customers use the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘554 Patent. The 

TCL Accused Mobile Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘554 Patent and have no 

substantial non-infringing uses. TCL’s receipt of the December 1, 2017 notice letter, and its 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the TCL Accused Mobile 

Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘554 

Patent, including the TCL Accused Mobile Devices that are known by TCL to be specially made 
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or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-

infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

115. TCL has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). TCL has knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the TCL Accused Mobile Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. TCL’s knowledge of the ‘889 Patent, 

while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the TCL Accused 

Mobile Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an 

infringing manner constitutes induced infringement. When TCL’s customers used the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 

1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. By providing the TCL Accused Mobile Devices to 

customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on 

notice of the ‘889 Patent, TCL specifically intends for TCL’s customers to infringe the ‘889 

Patent.  

116. TCL contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. TCL has had knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the TCL Accused Mobile Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. When TCL’s customers use the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘889 Patent. The 

TCL Accused Mobile Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘889 Patent and have no 

substantial non-infringing uses. TCL’s receipt of the notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer 

for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the TCL Accused Mobile Devices that embody at 

least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘889 Patent, including the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices that are known by TCL to be specially made or adapted for use in an 
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infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes 

contributory infringement.  

117. TCL has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent under 

35 U.S.C. § 271(b). TCL has knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the TCL Accused Mobile 

Devices’ infringement thereof since at least September 7, 2021, and knowledge of U.S. Patent 

No. 7,990,842 since Secember 7, 2017. TCL’s knowledge of the ‘629 Patent, while continuing to 

sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the TCL Accused Mobile Devices with the 

intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When TCL’s customers use the TCL Accused Mobile Devices 

in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 

27 of the ‘629 Patent. By providing the TCL Accused Mobile Devices to customers, together 

with instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘629 

Patent, TCL specifically intends for TCL’s customers to infringe the ‘629 Patent.  

118. TCL contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the 

‘629 Patent. TCL has had knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the TCL Accused Mobile Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least January 15, 2019. When TCL’s customers use the TCL 

Accused Mobile Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘629 Patent. The 

TCL Accused Mobile Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘629 Patent and have no 

substantial non-infringing uses.  TCL’s receipt of the January 15, 2019 notice letter, and its 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the TCL Accused Mobile 

Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘629 

Patent, including the TCL Accused Mobile Devices that are known by TCL to be specially made 
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or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-

infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

119. TCL has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 

271(b). TCL has knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the TCL Accused Devices’ (i.e. mobile 

devices and televisions) infringement thereof since at least December 1, 2017. TCL’s knowledge 

of the ‘862 Patent, while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the 

TCL Accused Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in 

an infringing manner constitutes induced infringement. When TCL’s customers use the TCL 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 

of the ‘862 Patent. By providing the TCL Accused Devices to customers, together with 

instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘862 Patent, 

TCL specifically intends for TCL’s customers to infringe the ‘862 Patent.  

120. TCL contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. 

TCL has had knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the TCL Accused Devices’ infringement thereof 

since at least January 15, 2019. When TCL’s customers use the TCL Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘862 Patent. The TCL Accused Devices are specially 

designed to infringe the ‘862 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. TCL’s receipt 

of the January 15, 2019 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell 

for importation the TCL Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the 

claimed invention of the ‘862 Patent, including the TCL Accused Devices that are known by 

TCL to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles 

with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  
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C. BLU 

1. Direct Infringement of the Asserted Patents by BLU 

121. The BLU Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. BLU directly infringes these 

claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the BLU Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 19, the BLU G91 Pro device satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. As shown in the claim chart 

attached at Exhibit 19, the BLU G91 Pro device and its components thereto satisfy all limitations 

of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. On information and belief, BLU imports 

into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the BLU Accused 

Devices.  

122. The BLU Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. BLU directly infringes 

these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the BLU Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 20, the BLU G91 Pro device satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. As shown in the claim 

chart attached at Exhibit 20, the BLU G91 Pro device and its components thereto satisfy all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. On information and 

belief, BLU imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the 

BLU Accused Devices.  
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2. Indirect Infringement of the Asserted Patents by BLU 

123. BLU has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). BLU has knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the BLU Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least January 4, 2018. BLU’s knowledge of the ‘554 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the BLU Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When BLU’s customers use the BLU Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. By providing the BLU Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how 

to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘554 Patent, BLU specifically 

intends for BLU’s customers to infringe the ‘554 Patent.  

124. BLU contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. BLU has had knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the BLU Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least January 4, 2018. When BLU’s customers use the BLU Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘554 Patent. The BLU Accused Devices are 

specially designed to infringe the ‘554 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. BLU’s 

receipt of the January 4, 2018 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, 

and/or sell for importation the BLU Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not 

all) of the claimed invention of the ‘554 Patent, including the BLU Accused Devices that are 

known by BLU to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not 

staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

125. BLU has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent under 35 
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U.S.C. § 271(b). BLU has knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the BLU Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least January 4, 2018. BLU’s knowledge of the ‘889 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the BLU Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When BLU’s customers used the BLU Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of 

the ‘889 Patent. By providing the BLU Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions 

on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘889 Patent, BLU 

specifically intends for BLU’s customers to infringe the ‘889 Patent.  

126. BLU contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. BLU has had knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the BLU Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least January 4, 2018. When BLU’s customers use the BLU Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘889 Patent. The BLU Accused Devices are 

specially designed to infringe the ‘889 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. BLU’s 

receipt of the notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for 

importation the BLU Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the 

claimed invention of the ‘889 Patent, including the BLU Accused Devices that are known by 

BLU to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles 

with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.   

D. The BBK Respondents 

1. Direct Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the BBK 
Respondents 

127. The BBK Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. BBK directly infringes these 
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claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the BBK Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 21, the OnePlus 8 Pro satisfies all limitations of 

at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 21, the OnePlus 8 Pro and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 

1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. On information and belief, BBK imports into the United 

States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the BBK Accused Devices.  

128. The BBK Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. BBK directly infringes 

these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the BBK Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 22, the OnePlus 8 Pro satisfies all limitations of 

at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached 

at Exhibit 22, the OnePlus 8 Pro and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least 

claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. On information and belief, BBK imports into 

the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the BBK Accused Devices.  

129. The BBK Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19, 20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. BBK directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the BBK Accused 

Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 23, the OnePlus 8 Pro satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19, 20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. As shown in the 

claim chart attached at Exhibit 23, the OnePlus 8 Pro and its components thereto satisfy all 
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limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19, 20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. On information 

and belief, BBK imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation 

the BBK Accused Devices.  

130. The BBK Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2-4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. BBK directly infringes these 

claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the BBK Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 24, the OnePlus 8 Pro satisfies all limitations of 

at least claims 1, 2-4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 24, the OnePlus 8 Pro and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 

1, 2-4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. On information and belief, BBK imports into the United 

States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the BBK Accused Devices.  

2. Indirect Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the BBK 
Respondents 

131. BBK has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). BBK has knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 12, 2019. BBK’s knowledge of the ‘554 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the BBK Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. By providing the BBK Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how 
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to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘554 Patent, BBK specifically 

intends for BBK’s customers to infringe the ‘554 Patent.  

132. BBK contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. BBK has had knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least July 12, 2019. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘554 Patent. The BBK Accused Devices are 

specially designed to infringe the ‘554 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. 

BBK’s receipt of the July 12, 2019 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, 

and/or sell for importation the BBK Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not 

all) of the claimed invention of the ‘554 Patent, including the BBK Accused Devices that are 

known by BBK to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not 

staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

133. BBK has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). BBK has knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 12, 2019. BBK’s knowledge of the ‘889 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the BBK Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When BBK’s customers used the BBK Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of 

the ‘889 Patent. By providing the BBK Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions 

on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘889 Patent, BBK 

specifically intends for BBK’s customers to infringe the ‘889 Patent.  
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134. BBK contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. BBK has had knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least July 12, 2019. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘889 Patent. The BBK Accused Devices are 

specially designed to infringe the ‘889 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. 

BBK’s receipt of the notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for 

importation the BBK Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the 

claimed invention of the ‘889 Patent, including the BBK Accused Devices that are known by 

BBK to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles 

with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

135. BBK has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent under 

35 U.S.C. § 271(b). BBK has knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 25, 2021. BBK’s knowledge of the ‘629 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the BBK Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of 

the ‘629 Patent. By providing the BBK Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions 

on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘629 Patent, BBK 

specifically intends for BBK’s customers to infringe the ‘629 Patent.  

136. BBK contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the 

‘629 Patent. BBK has had knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ 
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infringement thereof since at least July 25, 2021. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused 

Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘629 Patent. The BBK Accused 

Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘629 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing 

uses. BBK’s receipt of the July 25, 2021 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, 

import, and/or sell for importation the BBK Accused Devices that embody at least a material part 

(if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘629 Patent, including the BBK Accused Devices that 

are known by BBK to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not 

staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

137. BBK has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or under 

the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 

271(b). BBK has knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least January 15, 2019. BBK’s knowledge of the ‘862 Patent, while continuing to 

sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the BBK Accused Devices with the intent 

that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner constitutes 

induced infringement. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused Devices in their intended 

manner, they directly infringe at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. By providing 

the BBK Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an 

infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘862 Patent, BBK specifically intends for BBK’s 

customers to infringe the ‘862 Patent.  

138. BBK contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. 

BBK has had knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the BBK Accused Devices’ infringement thereof 

since at least January 15, 2019. When BBK’s customers use the BBK Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘862 Patent. The BBK Accused Devices are specially 
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designed to infringe the ‘862 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. BBK’s receipt 

of the January 15, 2019 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell 

for importation the BBK Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not all) of the 

claimed invention of the ‘862 Patent, including the BBK Accused Devices that are known by 

BBK to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not staple articles 

with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

E. The HMD Respondents 

1. Direct Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the HMD 
Respondents 

139. The HMD Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. HMD directly infringes 

these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the HMD Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 25, the Nokia 9 PureView satisfies all limitations 

of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 25, the Nokia 9 PureView and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least 

claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. On information and belief, HMD imports into the 

United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the HMD Accused Devices.  

140. The HMD Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. HMD directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the HMD Accused 

Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 26, the Nokia 9 PureView satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. As shown in the claim 
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chart attached at Exhibit 26, the Nokia 9 PureView and its components thereto satisfy all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. On information and 

belief, HMD imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the 

HMD Accused Devices.  

141. The HMD Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. HMD directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the HMD Accused 

Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 27, the Nokia 9 PureView satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. As shown in the 

claim chart attached at Exhibit 27, the Nokia 9 PureView and its components thereto satisfy all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. On information and 

belief, HMD imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the 

HMD Accused Devices.  

142. The HMD Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. HMD directly infringes these 

claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the HMD Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 28, the Nokia 9 PureView satisfies all limitations 

of at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 28, the Nokia 9 PureView and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least 

claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. On information and belief, HMD imports into the 

United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the HMD Accused Devices.  
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2. Indirect Infringement of the Asserted Patents by the HMD 
Respondents 

143. HMD has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). HMD has knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the HMD Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. HMD’s knowledge of the ‘554 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When HMD’s customers use the HMD Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the 

‘554 Patent. By providing the HMD Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on 

how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘554 Patent, HMD 

specifically intends for HMD’s customers to infringe the ‘554 Patent.  

144. HMD contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. HMD has had knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the HMD Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. When HMD’s customers use the HMD 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘554 Patent. The HMD 

Accused Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘554 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses. HMD’s receipt of the December 1, 2017 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, 

offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices that embody at least 

a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘554 Patent, including the HMD 

Accused Devices that are known by HMD to be specially made or adapted for use in an 

infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes 

contributory infringement.  



 

 48 
 

145. HMD has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). HMD has knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the HMD Accused 

Devices’ infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. HMD’s knowledge of the ‘889 Patent, 

while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused 

Devices with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing 

manner constitutes induced infringement. When HMD’s customers used the HMD Accused 

Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, 

and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. By providing the HMD Accused Devices to customers, together with 

instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘889 Patent, 

HMD specifically intends for HMD’s customers to infringe the ‘889 Patent.  

146. HMD contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. HMD has had knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the HMD Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. When HMD’s customers use the HMD 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘889 Patent. The HMD 

Accused Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘889 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses. HMD’s receipt of the notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, 

import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices that embody at least a material 

part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘889 Patent, including the HMD Accused Devices 

that are known by HMD to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are 

not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

147. HMD has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent 
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under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). HMD has knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the HMD Accused 

Devices’ infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019, and U.S. Patent No. 7,990,842 from 

which the ‘629 Patent reissued since July 18, 2019. HMD’s knowledge of the ‘629 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When HMD’s customers use the HMD Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 

of the ‘629 Patent. By providing the HMD Accused Devices to customers, together with 

instructions on how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘629 Patent, 

HMD specifically intends for HMD’s customers to infringe the ‘629 Patent.  

148. HMD contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the 

‘629 Patent. HMD has had knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the HMD Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. When HMD’s customers use the HMD 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘629 Patent. The HMD 

Accused Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘629 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses. HMD’s receipt of the July 18, 2019 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer 

for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices that embody at least a 

material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘629 Patent, including the HMD Accused 

Devices that are known by HMD to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing 

manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory 

infringement.  

149. HMD has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent under 35 
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U.S.C. § 271(b). HMD has knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the HMD Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. HMD’s knowledge of the ‘862 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When HMD’s customers use the HMD Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. 

By providing the HMD Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how to use 

them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘862 Patent, HMD specifically intends 

for HMD’s customers to infringe the ‘862 Patent.  

150. HMD contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. 

HMD has had knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the HMD Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least July 18, 2019. When HMD’s customers use the HMD Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘862 Patent. The HMD Accused Devices are 

specially designed to infringe the ‘862 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. 

HMD’s receipt of the July 18, 2019 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, 

and/or sell for importation the HMD Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if not 

all) of the claimed invention of the ‘862 Patent, including the HMD Accused Devices that are 

known by HMD to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not 

staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.  

F. Sonim 

1. Direct Infringement of the Asserted Patents by Sonim 

151. The Sonim Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. Sonim directly infringes 

these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 
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importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Sonim Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 29, the Sonim XP8 device satisfies all limitations 

of at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 29, the Sonim XP8 device and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least 

claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent. On information and belief, Sonim imports into the 

United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the Accused Devices.  

152. The Sonim Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. Sonim directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Sonim Accused 

Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 30, the Sonim XP8 device satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. As shown in the claim 

chart attached at Exhibit 30, the Sonim XP8 device and its components thereto satisfy all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent. On information and 

belief, Sonim imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the 

Accused Devices.  

153. The Sonim Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. Sonim directly 

infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, 

selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Sonim Accused 

Devices. As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 31, the Sonim XP8 device satisfies all 

limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. As shown in the 

claim chart attached at Exhibit 31, the Sonim XP8 device and its components thereto satisfy all 
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limitations of at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent. On information and 

belief, Sonim imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the 

Accused Devices.  

154. The Sonim Accused Devices directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine 

of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. Sonim directly infringes these 

claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for 

importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States the Sonim Accused Devices. 

As shown in the attached claim chart at Exhibit 32, the Sonim XP8 device satisfies all limitations 

of at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. As shown in the claim chart attached at 

Exhibit 32, the Sonim XP8 device and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least 

claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. On information and belief, Sonim imports into the 

United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the Accused Devices.  

2. Indirect Infringement of the Asserted Patents by Sonim 

155. Sonim has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). Sonim has knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least March 29, 2018. Sonim’s knowledge of the ‘554 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When Sonim’s customers use the Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. By providing the Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how to use 

them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘554 Patent, Sonim specifically 

intends for Sonim’s customers to infringe the ‘554 Patent.  
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156. Sonim contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-9, and 11-14 of the ‘554 

Patent. Sonim has had knowledge of the ‘554 Patent and the Sonim Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least March 29, 2018. When Sonim’s customers use the Sonim 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘554 Patent. The Sonim 

Accused Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘554 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses. Sonim’s receipt of the December 1, 2017 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, 

offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices that embody at 

least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘554 Patent, including the Sonim 

Accused Devices that are known by Sonim to be specially made or adapted for use in an 

infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes 

contributory infringement.  

157. Sonim has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 Patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Sonim has knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least March 29, 2018. Sonim’s knowledge of the ‘889 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When Sonim’s customers used the Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the 

‘889 Patent. By providing the Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how 

to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘889 Patent, Sonim specifically 

intends for Sonim’s customers to infringe the ‘889 Patent.  



 

 54 
 

158. Sonim contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 4-6, 8, 9, 11, and 12 of the ‘889 

Patent. Sonim has had knowledge of the ‘889 Patent and the Sonim Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least March 29, 2018. When Sonim’s customers use the Sonim 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘889 Patent. The Sonim 

Accused Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘889 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses. Sonim’s receipt of the notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, 

import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices that embody at least a material 

part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘889 Patent, including the Sonim Accused 

Devices that are known by Sonim to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing 

manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory 

infringement.  

159. Sonim has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the ‘629 Patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Sonim has knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 17, 2021. Sonim’s knowledge of the ‘629 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When Sonim’s customers use the Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of 

the ‘629 Patent. By providing the Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on 

how to use them in an infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘629 Patent, Sonim 

specifically intends for Sonim’s customers to infringe the ‘629 Patent.  
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160. Sonim contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 8-11, 13-14, 19-20, and 27 of the 

‘629 Patent. Sonim has had knowledge of the ‘629 Patent and the Sonim Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 17, 2021. When Sonim’s customers use the Sonim 

Accused Devices in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘629 Patent. The Sonim 

Accused Devices are specially designed to infringe the ‘629 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses. Sonim’s receipt of the July 17, 2021 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer 

for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices that embody at least a 

material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘629 Patent, including the Sonim 

Accused Devices that are known by Sonim to be specially made or adapted for use in an 

infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes 

contributory infringement.  

161. Sonim has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). Sonim has knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the Accused Devices’ 

infringement thereof since at least July 18, 2019. Sonim’s knowledge of the ‘862 Patent, while 

continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices 

with the intent that they be used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner 

constitutes induced infringement. When Sonim’s customers use the Accused Devices in their 

intended manner, they directly infringe at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. By 

providing the Accused Devices to customers, together with instructions on how to use them in an 

infringing manner while being on notice of the ‘862 Patent, Sonim specifically intends for 

Sonim’s customers to infringe the ‘862 Patent.  
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162. Sonim contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2- 4, and 9-12 of the ‘862 Patent. 

Sonim has had knowledge of the ‘862 Patent and the Sonim Accused Devices’ infringement 

thereof since at least July 18, 2019. When Sonim’s customers use the Sonim Accused Devices in 

their intended manner, they directly infringe the ‘862 Patent. The Sonim Accused Devices are 

specially designed to infringe the ‘862 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses. 

Sonim’s receipt of the July 18, 2019 notice letter, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, 

and/or sell for importation the Sonim Accused Devices that embody at least a material part (if 

not all) of the claimed invention of the ‘862 Patent, including the Sonim Accused Devices that 

are known by Sonim to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not 

staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement.   

VII. THE DOMESTIC INDUSTRY 

163. A domestic industry for the purposes of 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(2), as defined in 

U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(A), (B), and/or (C), exists with respect to the significant and continuous 

investment in plant and equipment, significant and continuous employment of labor and 

capital, and/or substantial and ongoing investment in engineering, research, and 

development of mobile devices developed, tested, and deployed on networks in the United 

States by at least BNR’s domestic licensee, Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd. “Samsung” or 

“SEC”. These investments are both significant and substantial.5 

A. Samsung’s Practice of the Asserted Patents 

164. Samsung sells or has sold within the United States mobile devices that practice 

the Asserted  Patents. Such mobile devices include Samsung’s flagship Galaxy S devices, 

 
5 The Samsung license is attached as Exhibit 46. Samsung is but one licensee. BNR 

reserves the right to rely on other or additional licensees, or its own substantial investments in 
licensing related to the Asserted Patents, to meet the domestic industry requirement. 



 

 57 
 

which include at least the Galaxy S8 series through the S21 series devices (the “DI 

Products”).  

165. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(ix), exemplary claim charts 

demonstrating how Samsung’s DI Products are covered by at least one claim of each of the ‘554 

patent, the ‘889 patent, the ‘629 patent and the ‘862 patent are attached as Exhibits 33-36, 

respectively. [Exhibits 33-36]. Because these products practice at least one claim of each of the 

Asserted Patents, they satisfy the requirements of 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(B)(ii).  

B. Samsung’s Domestic Investments Related to Articles that Practice the 
Asserted Patents 

166. In public comments submitted to the Commission in Investigation No. 337-TA-

1010, Samsung described its mobile phone and tablet business in the United States as follows: 

Founded in 1969, SEC has grown to become a world leader in the design, 
manufacture, and marketing of a wide variety of electronic products, ranging from 
components, such as semiconductor memories and large scale integrated circuits 
(LSI), to computers, consumer electronics, and mobile communication devices such 
as smartphones, tablets, and set-top boxes. Through its subsidiary, Samsung 
Electronics America, Inc. (“SEA”) (SEC and SEA collectively referred to as 
“Samsung” herein), Samsung is a leading supplier in the United States of consumer 
electronics, offering a broader array of products than any other manufacturer and 
having the largest breadth of distribution for its products. Samsung sells its 
smartphones and tablets to nearly every national, regional, and local wireless carrier, 
including the “big four” carriers— AT&T, Sprint, T-Mobile, and Verizon—and 
many local and regional carriers—e.g., U.S. Cellular and MetroPCS. Many of these 
carriers rely heavily on Samsung’s product catalog to serve the needs of their 
customers and at their target price points. 

 
***** 

 
Many of Samsung’s products are developed for the U.S. market and tested in the 
United States. For example, in accordance with federal regulations and/or carrier 
requirements, Samsung’s smartphones must be tested on U.S. networks before they 
can be sold or distributed in the United States. 

167. Samsung engages in engineering, design, and R&D in the United States related to 

the DI Products at at least the following locations: 
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• Samsung Research America Headquarters, 665 Clyde Avenue, Mountain View, 
CA 94043 

• Samsung Research America, 6625 Excellence Way, Plano, TX 75023 

• Samsung Austin R&D Center (SARC), 3900 N Capital of Texas Hwy, Austin, TX 
78746 

• Samsung Semiconductor Inc., 3655 N 1st St, San Jose, CA 95134 

168. On information and belief, Samsung makes significant investments in labor in the 

United States related to the DI Products. For example: 

• Exhibit 62 shows select job postings for engineering positions at Samsung 

Research America Headquarters in Mountain View, CA that each detail work 

related to Samsung’s mobile devices. 

• Exhibit 63 shows select job postings for engineering positions at Samsung 

Research America in Plano, TX that each detail work related to Samsung’s 

mobile devices. 

• Exhibit 64 shows select job postings for engineering positions at Samsung Austin 

R&D Center in Austin, TX that each detail work related to Samsung’s mobile 

devices. 

• Exhibit 65 shows select job postings for engineering positions at Samsung 

Semiconductor, Inc. in San Jose, CA that each detail work related to Samsung’s 

mobile devices. 

On information and belief, these job postings, which are a sampling of jobs posted for these 

locations, are indicative of Samsung’s significant investments in labor at each of these sites that 

is related to the Samsung DI Products. 
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169. On information and belief, Samsung makes significant investments in plant at the 

above-mentioned sites. For example: 

• Exhibit 66 is a property record for the Samsung Research America Headquarters 

in Mountain View, CA showing that the building has 175,982 square feet.6 

• Exhibit 67 is a property record for the Samsung Research America in Plano, TX 

showing that the building has 216,665 square feet.7 

• Exhibit 68 is a property record for the Samsung Austin R&D Center in Austin, 

TX showing that the building has 250,000 square feet.8 

• Exhibit 69 is a property record for the Samsung Semiconductor, Inc. facility in 

San Jose, CA showing that the building has 411,206 square feet.9 

On information and belief, the investments in plant at these locations are related to the DI 

Products as demonstrated by the job postings detailing engineering positions related to 

Samsung’s mobile devices at these locations. 

170. Based on publicly available information, Samsung reported acquisitions of 

property, plant, and equipment totaling approximately $37 million dollars. See Exhibit 60 at 

p. 15). It is believed that a substantial portion of that sum was attributable to acquisitions of 

 
6 Available from https://www.propertyshark.com/mason/Property/37883306/665-Clyde-

Ave-Mountain-View-CA-94043/. 

7 Available from https://www.enrichedrealestate.com/6625-Excellence-Way-Plano-TX-
75023/Office/OfficeBuildingLowRise14stories/Id=219785293&searchId=6eb1f9d4-f4c0-4993-
9dab-4f747801006f. 

8 Avaliable from https://www.enrichedrealestate.com/3900-N-Capital-Of-Tx-Hy-B-B-
Austin-TX-78746/Office/OfficeBuildingLowRise14stories/Id=5858139&searchId=e8f8588c-
5f4f-42e7-834b-a7b1e725432a. 

9 Available from https://www.propertyshark.com/mason/PropertyReport/? 
propkey=136252326&lcl=ca_santa_clara. 
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property, plant, and equipment in the United States related to Samsung’s devices that practice 

the Asserted Patents. As detailed above, Samsung operates at least four locations in the 

United States in connection with its mobile device business where it employs personnel in, 

among other roles, research and development, design, and development of mobile devices 

that practice the Asserted Patents. [Exhibit 61].  

171. Samsung’s investments in plant, equipment, and labor in the United States are 

believed to be related to the DI Products specifically, which themselves comprise a 

significant percentage of Samsung’s domestic mobile device business. In the below data 

obtained from International Data Corporation (“IDC”), Galaxy series sales are shown, by 

year and model, in terms of (1) units sold in the US, (2) revenues from domestic units sold, 

(3) relative percentages of units sold, and (4) and relative percentages of revenue. 

REDACTED 

172. The above table shows that the Galaxy series devices have comprised between 

REDACTED of Samsung’s total domestic sales in terms of units sold, and between 

REDACTED of total domestic sales in terms of revenue.  On information and belief, 

Complainant expects Samsung’s relative domestic investments in plant, equipment, and labor to 

generally track these percentages as well. These percentages, moreover, demonstrate that the 

Galaxy series devices are both relatively significant numerically (in terms of units sold and 

revenues) and also qualitatively where the Galaxy series is Samsung’s flagship device and 

central to its brand.  

173. Thus, a domestic industry as defined by at least 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(A)-(B) 

exists in the United States with respect to the articles protected by the Asserted Patents 

through Samsung’s significant investment in plant, equipment, and labor. 
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174. Moreover, Samsung has been found to meet the domestic industry requirement 

with respect to its mobile device business segment. See Certain Electronic Devices, Including 

Wireles Communications Devices, Portable Music and Data Processing Devices, and Tablet 

Computers, Inv. No. 337-TA-794, Initial Determination, at 589-605 (Sept. 14, 2012). 

175. BNR certifies that it will seek a subpoena directed to Samsung’s domestic 

investments related to articles that practice the Asserted Patents substantially immediately 

following the institution of the investigation. 

VIII. RELATED LITIGATIONS 

176. Complainant discloses the following proceedings involving the Asserted Patents, 

none of which resulted in invalidation or cancellation of any claims of any Asserted Patents: 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. TCL Technology Group Corporation et al, Civil Action 

2:21-cv-07323 (C.D. Cal.) (active) 

• TCL Industries Holdings Co., Ltd. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, Civil Action 

3:21-cv-01598 (SDCA) (active) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. CommScope Holding Company, Inc., et al, Civil Action 

6:21-cv-941 (W.D. Tex.) (active) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. HP Inc., Civil Action 6:21-cv-939 (W.D. Tex.) (active); 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. Dell Technologies, LLC, et al, Civil Action 6:21-cv-909 

(W.D. Tex.) (active) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. Lenovo Group Ltd. et al, Civil Action 6:21-cv-847 (W.D. 

Tex.) (active) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. Apple Inc., Civil Action 6:21-cv-833 (W.D. Tex.) 

(active) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v Coolpad Technologies, Inc. et al, Civil Action 3:18-cv-

01783 (SDCA) (terminated on Oct. 26, 2020) 
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• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. ZTE Corporation et al, Civil Action 3:18-cv-01786 

(SDCA) (terminated on Jul. 29, 2020) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. Kyocera Corporation et al, Civil Action 3:18-cv-01785 

(SDCA) (terminated on Aug. 5, 2019) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. Huawei Device Co., Ltd. et al, Civil Action 3:18-cv-

01784 (SDCA) (terminated on Dec. 3, 2019) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. LG Electronics, Inc. et al, Civil Action 3:18-cv-02864 

(SDCA) (terminated on Jul. 14, 2020) 

• Bell Northern Research, LLC v. Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. et al, Civil Action 2:19-

cv-00286 (EDTX) (terminated on Oct. 13, 2020) 

• Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2020-00611 (PTAB) 

(terminated on Oct. 27, 2020) 

• Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2020-00613 (PTAB) 

(terminated on Oct. 27, 2020) 

• Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2020-00675 (PTAB) 

(terminated on Oct. 16, 2020) 

• Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2020-00676 (PTAB) 

(terminated on Oct. 16, 2020) 

• LG Electronics Inc. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2020-00108 (PTAB) 

(terminated on Jul. 29, 2020) 

• Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2019-01172 

(PTAB) (terminated on Dec. 12, 2019) 

• Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2019-01175 

(PTAB) (terminated on Dec. 12, 2019) 

• Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2019-

01439(PTAB) (terminated on Dec. 13, 2019) 

• ZTE Corporation et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2019-01438 (PTAB) (Dec. 
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17, 2019) 

• Coolpad Technologies, Inc. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2019-01319 

(PTAB) (terminated on Oct. 29, 2020) 

• Coolpad Technologies, Inc. et al v. Bell Northern Research, LLC, IPR2019-01320 

(PTAB) (terminated on Oct. 29, 2020) 

 
IX. STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS 

177. Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.12(a)(12), Complainants identify the category of 

accused products as mobile devices (specifically, mobile telephones and tablet computers), 

personal computers, and televisions having wireless communication capabilities, and 

components thereof. 

X. HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE NUMBERS 

178. Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.12(a)(3), the Harmonized Tariff Schedule numbers 

for the Accused Devices are believed to be 8517.12.00 (telephones for cellular networks or for 

other wireless networks); 8529.10.21(televisions); 8471.30.01 (Portable automatic data 

processing machines, weighing not more than 10 kg, consisting of at least a central processing 

unit, a keyboard and a display); and 8471.49.00 (Other automatic data processing machines 

entered in the  form  of  systems). 

179. These  classifications  are intended  for illustration only  and are not intended to 

be restrictive of the accused products or of products subject to the relief requested. 
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XI. RELIEF REQUESTED 

WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, Complainant respectfully requests that the 

United States International Trade Commission: 

(a) institute an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 

amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, with respect to Respondents’ violations of that 

section based on the importation into the United States, sale for importation, 

and/or the sale within the United States after importation of Respondents’ 

products that infringe the Asserted Patents; 

(b) set a target date of no more than fifteen months; 

(c) schedule and conduct a hearing on permanent relief pursuant to 19 

U.S.C. § 1337(c) for the purposes of receiving evidence and hearing argument 

concerning whether there has been a violation of Section 337, and following the 

hearing, to determine that there has been a violation of Section 337; 

(d) issue a limited exclusion order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(d) forbidding entry 

into the United States of Respondents’ products that infringe one or more claims 

of the Asserted Patents;  

(e) issue cease and desist orders, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f), prohibiting the 

Respondents and their related companies or divisions from conducting any of the 

following activities in the United States:  importing, selling, offering for sale, 

marketing, advertising, distributing, transferring (except for exportation), and/or 

soliciting U.S. agents or distributors for, products covered by one or more claims 

of the Asserted Patents; 

(f) impose a bond upon Respondents’ importation of the Accused Products that 

infringe any claim of the Asserted Patents during the 60-day Presidential review 
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period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. §§ 1337(e) and (j) to prevent further injury to BNR’s 

domestic industry relating to the Asserted Patents; 

(g) issue such other and further relief as the Commission deems just and proper under 

the law, based upon the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of 

the Commission. 

 
 

Dated: September 24, 2021 DEVLIN LAW FIRM LLC 
 
/s/Andrew Pratt    
Timothy Devlin 
Andrew F. Pratt 
Srikant Cheruvu 
Christopher R. Clayton 
1526 Gilpin Avenue 
Wilmington, DE 19806 
Tel: (302) 449-9010 
tdevlin@devlinlawfirm.com 
apratt@devlinlawfirm.com 
scheruvu@devlinlawfirm.com 
cclayton@devlinlawfirm.com 
 
Attorneys for Complainant 
Bell Northern Research, LLC 
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WASHINGTON, D.C.

In the Matter of

CERTAIN ELECTRONIC DEVICES HAVING
WIRELESS COMMUN ICATION
CAPABILITIES AND COMPONENTS
THEREOF

Investigation No" 337-TA-

l, Afztrl nean, declare, in acoordance rwitlr I 9 cr.F'. R. $ 2l 0. I 2(a)(l), as fbllows:

1. I anr the President of Bell Notthern l{esearch, and I am cluly authorized to
sign tl'ris Complaint;

2. I have read the Cornplaint and anr aware of its contents;

3. The cornplaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to
harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cclst o1'the
investigation or related proceeding;

4. To the best of rny l<nowledge, in{'ormation and helief lounded Llpoll
reasonable inquiry. claims, defenses, and othel legal contentions therein
are warranted by existing law or by a non-{i'ivolous argument {br the
extension, rnodifioation. or reversarl olexisting law or the establishrnent of
new law;

5. 'l'he allegations and other l'actual contentions have evidentiary support or
are likelyto have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for
lurther investigation or discovery.

I declare under the penalry of perjurry under the laws of the l.lnited Stares of
Arnerica that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on: September 23,2021
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